
Mark Saccoccio  
Town Clerk  

  01525 631920 
      info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 

 

 
The Council Chamber, The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, LU7 1HD 

8 November 2022 
 
To:  Members of the Older Persons Sub-Committee (Councillors M Freeman, 
R Goodchild, T Morris, S Owen, G Perham and F Kharawala) 
(Copies to all Town Councillors for information) 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of Older Persons Sub-Committee to 
be held on Thursday, 17 November 2022 commencing at 10.00 am in the The Council 
Chamber, The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton 
Buzzard, LU7 1HD.  

 
M Saccoccio  
Town Clerk 

AGENDA 
 
1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 

 Schedule 12 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires a record be kept of the 
Members present and that this record form part of the minutes of the meeting. 
Members who cannot attend a meeting should tender apologies to the Town 
Clerk. 
 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 

 (i) Under the Localism Act 2011 (sections 26-37 and Schedule 4) and in 
accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct, Members are required to 
declare any interests which are not currently entered in the Member’s Register 
of Interests or if he/she has not notified the Monitoring Officer of it.  
(ii) Should any Member have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in an item on 
the agenda, the Member may not participate in consideration of that item 
unless a Dispensation has first been requested (in writing) and granted by the 
Council (see Dispensation Procedure). 
 

3.   QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC (3 MINUTES PER PERSON; MAXIMUM 15 

MINUTES)  

 

 To receive questions and statements from members of the public in respect of 
any item of business included in the agenda, as provided for in Standing Order 
No.s 3(e)(f)(g) and 3(h). 
 

4.   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 4) 

THIS MEETING MAY 
BE RECORDED * 

Public Document Pack

mailto:info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
http://www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk/


OLDER PERSONS SUB-COMMITTEE Thursday, 17 November 2022 
 

 

 

 

 (a) To receive and approve as a correct record the minutes of the Older 
Persons Sub-Committee meeting held on 19 August 2022 (attached) in 
accordance with Standing Order 12.  
(b) To receive information updates on matters arising from the previous 
meeting (if appropriate). 
 

5.   CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE COUNCIL UPDATE  

 

 By invitation, Ian Hanton (Development & Commissioning Manager, Social 
Care Health & Housing, Central Bedfordshire Council) will attend the meeting 
to give an update on the day centre offer and Marigold House project.  
 

6.   TECHNICAL SUPPORT HELPLINE (Pages 5 - 10) 

 

 By invitation, a representative of Citizens Online will attend the meeting to give 
an update on the technical support project. 
 

7.   COMMUNITY AGENT SCHEME LAUNCH (Pages 11 - 14) 

 

 By invitation, a representative of Bedfordshire Rural Communities Charity will 
attend the meeting to give an update on the launch of the Community Agent 
initiative.  
 

8.   AGE FRIENDLY COMMUNITIES  

 

 To receive a presentation on the World Health Organisation “Age Friendly 
Communities” initiative and to consider next steps. 
 

9.   TABLET LOAN UPDATE (Pages 15 - 18) 

 

 To receive a report regarding the aspiration to deliver a tablet device lending 
scheme to support the digital isolation agenda. 
 

10.   BUDGET REPORT (Pages 19 - 24) 

 

 To receive and note a budget monitoring report for the 55UP project to date.  
 

11.   NEXT STEPS  

 

 To consider next steps for the 55UP programme and sub-committee, including 
any recommendations to committee.  
 

* Phones and other equipment may be used to film, audio record, tweet or blog from this meeting by an individual Council member, 
officer or member of the public.  No part of the meeting room is exempt from public filming unless the meeting resolves to go into 
exempt session.  The use of images or recordings arising from this is not within the Council’s control. 



 

Page 24 

LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL 
 

OLDER PERSONS SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

FRIDAY 19 AUGUST  2022 AT 1000 HOURS 
 

Present:  Councillors  G Perham   
             J M Freeman  
             S Owen 
             T Morris 
                  

                      Also in attendance:       M Saccoccio, Town Clerk 
  S Sandiford, Deputy Town Clerk 
  Nina Bailey, Cultural & Economic Services  
  Support Officer 
     
            Members of the Public: 1 

  
   
55/OP     APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
Apologies for absence had been received from Councillors Goodchild and 
Kharawala. 
 

56/OP     DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 
 
No declarations were made and no dispensations had been requested.  
 

 57/OP QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 

  Councillor Freeman raised a concern on behalf of a member of the public 
regarding the use of supermarket loyalty schemes, whereby rewards or discount 
vouchers might only be available electronically to users of apps on mobile 
devices. It was felt that this could be considered discriminatory to people not 
using mobile devices and agreed to write to the managers of local supermarkets 
and to the local Member of Parliament.  

   
 58/OP MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 

The Sub-Committee received the draft minutes of the Older Persons Sub 
Committee held on 26 May 2022.  

 
Minute reference 53/OP: it was noted that an official launch for the updated 
Information Booklet for older people had taken place on 15 August. The booklet 
would be primarily distributed by GP practices and health professionals. Thanks 
were expressed to all the volunteers who had contributed to the latest update.  

 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Older Persons Sub 
Committee held on 26 May 2022 be approved and signed as a correct 
record. 
 

                                 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



Older Persons Sub-Committee 19 AUGUST 2022  
                                                                                                                                                                 
 

Page 25 

  59/OP LEIGHTON-LINSLADE HELPING HANDS  
 

By invitation, a representative of the Leighton-Linslade Helping Hands group (a 
“Good Neighbour” scheme) spoke to the Sub-Committee about the work of the 
group. The group fell under the Good Neighbours scheme under the umbrella of 
the Bedfordshire Rural Communities Charity (BRCC) and was intended to help 
isolated or elderly residents, with people either making direct contact to ask for 
help or referrals being made by the NHS. Volunteers were DBS checked so 
could go into people’s homes and the tasks they were able to undertake included 
shopping, light tasks in the house or garden (e.g. changing a light bulb), taking 
the resident for a walk or out somewhere. 
 
There were currently 44 volunteers and the group was self funding, with 
voluntary donations requested where applicable to help cover volunteer 
expenses such as mileage. There were approximately 95 regular clients with 
other requests received on an ad-hoc basis. For the steering committee this 
meant a significant amount of administration to be managed.  
 
The Sub-Committee expressed its thanks to the group and invited the group to 
approach the council for any support it might need.  
 

60/OP    PROJECT UPDATES  
 

The Committee received a verbal update on 55UP projects. 
 
The technical support helpline project operated by Citizens Online was building 
pace, with several new digital champions on board and an increase in learners. 
Support could be given by telephone or in person at public locations such as the 
Library or the weekly Chatty Café at TACTIC on a Tuesday morning. A range of 
promotional activity was being undertaken and it appeared most enquiries were 
arising from printed literature. Partners were also helping to promote the 
scheme. A case study example of a recent learner was given.  
 
The Community Agent project was due to launch in September with an 
appointment made by BRCC. The agent would be working 21 hours per week, 
starting in early September. The scheme would be operated and promoted by 
BRCC with council support.  
 
The Sub-Committee heard that the build of the new Marigold House facility was 
progressing well and it was hoped that a site visit could take place soon.  
 
The Chair referred to day care services provided by Central Bedfordshire 
Council and asked whether a 2017 paper on the subject was being updated. It 
was agreed to try to find out more about this for the next meeting.  

  
      61/OP  TABLET LOAN SCHEME  
 

The Sub-Committee received a presentation on the work undertaken to date in 
researching existing tablet loan schemes nationally.  
 
 

Page 2



Older Persons Sub-Committee 19 AUGUST 2022  
                                                                                                                                                                 
 

Page 26 

 
There were a number of schemes in operation through larger local authorities or 
charities and the research had highlighted a range of factors which would need 
further consideration. These included: what type of device to provide and how 
these would be managed (especially given data protection and security 
considerations), whether a data allowance would need to be supplied, how 
individuals would access tablets, the duration and terms of a loan and how users 
would be taught to use devices. Discussions had included several local providers 
of IT support to see whether they could assist with device procurement and 
management (“mobile device management”).  
 
In the last few days it had come to light that BRCC was operating a scheme 
called “You can do IT”, with three groups in Bedfordshire providing digital skills 
sessions and including device loan. An enquiry had come through from BRCC 
about the potential for joining forces with the Citizens Online digital support 
project and it was agreed to facilitate discussions between all parties about 
possible synergy between schemes. An update could be given to members of 
the sub-committee by email prior to the next scheduled meeting in November.  

   
 

 The meeting closed at 11:16 hours.  

 

I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A TRUE AND ACCURATE 
RECORD OF THE MEETING HELD ON 19 AUGUST 2022. 

 

 

 

Chair             17 NOVEMBER 2022 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



   

1 

 

DIGITAL INCLUSION IN LEIGHTON-LINSLADE 

Update Report June 2022 – November 2022 

SUMMARY 

During the second half of 2022, the project has progressed well. We continued to recruit, 

induct, train and manage Digital Champions to support learners. We have strengthened our 

engagement with local organisations; continuing to deliver in person digital support sessions.   

 

Highlights:  

 Recruited and trained two ‘volunteer’ Digital Champions who provide in person and 

remote support, and have one further Digital Champion in the pipeline. 

 Trained five ‘embedded’ Digital Champions who work within other organisations to 

provide digital support in the community. This has allowed us to extend our offer to 

include home visits, providing more diversity the provision offer. 

 Established a weekly digital skills drop in session at the Chatty Café (Tactic Centre) 

 Digital Champions delivered digital skills sessions at a local retirement scheme.  

 Produced and distributed promotional material both via social media and in print.  

 Continued to establish links with suitable partner organisations for; promoting the 

Freephone helpline and drop in sessions, to recruit embedded digital champions 

within existing staff and to explore suitable groups to hold digital champion sessions.  

 Worked together with Leighton-Linslade Town Council and Bedfordshire Rural 

Communities Charity on introducing a Tablet Loan scheme.  

 

DIGITAL CHAMPIONS 

Between May and November, we recruited and trained an additional two volunteer Citizens 

Online Digital Champions who are providing digital support at weekly drop in sessions. Our 

existing volunteer has been providing both in person support at the library and at the support 

sessions. We also have an additional volunteer who is in the process of being recruited.  

We are continuing to promote the volunteer role in the following ways:  

 Volunteer recruitment sites for example DoIt and Charity Jobs 

 Social Media  

 CVS Bedfordshire 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



   

2 

 

 Promoting the role to local organisations  

We have also had another expression of interest in becoming a Digital Champion and are 

waiting on further communication from them.  

We also trained five ‘embedded’ Digital Champions. Having digital champions trained in 

existing organisations to support residents with digital skills is key to making digital inclusion 

work sustainable. It also raises awareness of the barriers people face to becoming included. 

Three of these Digital Champions work for Music24, a local community based music charity. 

These champions are able to provide digital support to people accessing their group in 

Leighton Buzzard who are 55 plus.  

We have also trained two Digital Champions who volunteer for Leighton-Linslade Helping 

Hands. As volunteers from Helping Hands are able to visit people in their own homes, we have 

been able to extend our digital support offer to include home visits for those who are unable 

to leave their home, providing more diversity in the range of support available. 

MARKETING  

During the last six months we have promoted the service via social media, in print and 

through partner organisations.  

Printed promotions have included:  

 Leighton Buzzard Observer 

 Bee Local Magazine 

 Leighton-Linslade About Town  

 Information for Older People Leighton-Linslade Area (Yellow Booklet) 

 First Point Housing Newsletter 

Most learners who contact the helpline have seen the helpline number advertised in print, so 

we are exploring other printed options to promote the service in the coming months, 

including local newsletters.  

PARTNERSHIP WORKING 

We have continued to engage with local organisations to promote the service and encourage 

signposting. One successful partnership we have formed in this second half has been with 

First Port Housing where we have been able to provide in person digital skill sessions in one of 

their scheme’s residents lounge. We are also working with two other First Port schemes in 

Leighton Buzzard to see whether these sessions can be replicated.  

Page 6



   

3 

 

We have approached several local organisations in the area to promote the project. 

Organisations who have expressed further interest in being involved with and signposting to 

the service have included Leighton and Linslade Health Connections, The Women’s Institute, 

Carers in Bedfordshire, DWP, Leighton Buzzard Surgery, Age UK, Leighton-Linslade 

Community Agent and the library who are displaying posters to their customers. We have also 

sent information to more organisations who have yet to respond to the service who we will be 

following up with over the coming months.  

FACE TO FACE AND REMOTE SUPPORT  

Learners have continued to contact us through the technology helpline and through this we 

have been able to provide support remotely or have arranged in-person support with one of 

our Digital Champion volunteers at Leighton Buzzard library. This support has been tailored 

to suit the needs and interests of each learner. Support has included helping learners to 

browse the internet and to access online forms (such as self-assessment tax forms), using 

email and adding folders, downloading apps, and using communication tools such as 

Whatsapp.  

‘I completed a session with Mr C and he is now happy to continue on his own as he feels more 

confident to access the Internet and browse’. Citizens Online Digital Champion 

We are providing drop in support at the Chatty Café (Tactic Centre) on Tuesdays 10am -1pm. 

Two of our volunteers attend weekly to provide digital support.  To promote uptake of the 

support, we have provided some stands for the tables at the Chatty Café to advertise the 

service to Chatty Café attendees. Over the last few months, our volunteers have helped 

learners to develop skills such as being able to use their devices (tablets, smartphones and 

laptops), to learn how to use Microsoft teams and help with sending emails.  

We have established digital support sessions at Laburnum Court – a retirement housing 

scheme in Leighton Buzzard. These sessions have been well attended. Support with online 

shopping, making video calls, taking and archiving photos and sending messages to one 

learner’s surgery are just some examples of the help provided by the Digital Champions. One 

of the Digital Champions worked closely with a learner who had brought her laptop. Some of 

the skills he supported her with was how to remove redundant apps, adding new tabs and 

sending attachments in an email.  

‘Adrian (The Digital Champion) was lovely and very patient with me. He helped me with my 

laptop and told me not to be frightened of it, just to have a go’. Learner from Leighton-Linslade.  

By partnering with and providing training to two embedded Digital Champion in Leighton-

Linslade Helping Hands, we have been able to offer support to a learner in their own home. 

Page 7



   

4 

 

The learner had rung our free helpline, seeking support to update his laptop to enable him to 

use it. He stated that this intervention was: 

‘It was very successful, the lovely lady worked extremely hard and now it is working perfectly. I 

am able to now use my laptop.’ Learner from Leighton-Linslade 

TABLET LOAN SCHEME 

Lack of devices is a barrier to digital inclusion so when we learned about the funding BRCC 

had to operate a tablet loan scheme, we recognised the opportunity for Leighton Linslade 

residents. We have partnered with BRCC to access the tablets and internet connection for 

residents. Establishing a referral process with Leighton-Linslade Town Council also learner 

agreements and procedures. We plan to identify people in need of a device through Citizens 

Online Digital Champions who will refer the person for a tablet loan of six months. Once the 

tablet is received Digital Champions will provide digital support to enable the learner to be 

able to utilise and fully benefit from the tablet.  

CHALLENGES 

WiFi – there have been some internet issues at the session venues. The Digital Champions 

have at times struggled with slow internet speeds. This has been raised with staff at the 

venues and together with Leighton-Linslade Town Council we are looking into solutions for 

this.  

Learner Engagement  – We have had an increased uptake of the service compared to the first 

half of the project however we need to engage more hard to reach residents for example those 

who are housebound. We will be looking at different ways of engaging these residents in the 

next half including local newsletters, reaching out to other local community groups to raise 

awareness and working with other organisations who visit people at home. We’ve also 

provided the Digital Champions with some business cards with the helpline number on as a 

way of prompting people to contact the service.  

 

CASE STUDY 2 –  BARBARA’S  STORY  

Barbara is 88 and lives in Leighton Buzzard. She had never used any form of computer prior to 

the Covid 19 pandemic. She only had her landline phone to stay connected with her family 

and friends. Her son-in-law suggested that she get a smart phone and tablet to ‘entertain her’ 

and although hesitant, Barbara agreed.  

Page 8



   

5 

 

When Barbara received her new smartphone, her son-in-law helped to set it up and showed 

her to use it. However, Barbara felt that she needed some more one-to-one support to be able 

to learn at her own pace. She came along to a Citizens Online digital support session in 

Leighton-Linslade and met with Liz, a Digital Champion.  

Barbara’s family and friends are very important to her and she is able to connect with them 

online via Whatsapp. However, although she can answer video calls from her loved ones, she 

couldn’t figure out how to start a video call herself. Liz helped Barbara to set up a video call 

with her friend so that Barbara could practise starting the call. She was really pleased and 

said:   

‘This is great, I’ll be able to video call to them myself now’.  

During the session, Barbara talked about her love of music. Her son-in-law had set up a 

playlist of her favourite artists on Spotify which she loved.  

‘Being able to listen to my music during the lockdowns kept me going’.  

Unfortunately Barbara’s free Spotify trial had ended and she thought she was unable to 

access it anymore. Digital Champion Liz, spent time to explain about the free Spotify service 

and showed her how to be able to search for and play new songs on the app. Barbara was so 

grateful for this 

‘I’m so happy I will have my music back, after this I’m going to go home and start playing my 

songs straightaway’.  

At the end of the session, Barbara expressed how glad she was that she had come along and 

learnt some new skills  

‘I wasn’t sure about coming along but I’m glad that I have and I’m so happy to have my music 

back’.   

PLAN FOR NEXT SIX MONTHS   

Our focus is to reach more residents of Leighton-Linslade who may benefit from Digital 

Champion support and encourage them to engage with the service. To do this we will: 

 Identify further potential opportunities for digital support in established community 

groups and in retirement schemes. 

 Explore ways of engaging hard to reach residents in the area, some of whom may be 

unable to leave their home.  

Page 9



   

6 

 

 Explore further printed opportunities to promote the service including local 

newsletters.  

 Continue to advertise the Digital Champion volunteer role to be able to offer more in 

person support sessions.  

 Continue to promote the helpline and face to face sessions via promotional materials 

and social media.    

 Continue to partner with local organisations who can promote the helpline and face to 

face sessions by a) starting a conversation about digital skills and b) through 

distribution of promotional materials. To also identify and train further embedded 

digital champions.  

 Implement the Tablet Loan scheme, identifying learners and providing digital support 

sessions in conjunction with the loans.  

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS  

KPI Total H2 Cumulative Total 

Volunteer Digital Champions recruited 

and trained  

7 8 

Learners Supported 35 38 

Number of organisations approached / 

engaged 

14 32 

Case Studies 1 2 

 

 

Page 10



Leighton Linslade Community Agent Update: 

1 September - 31 October 2022 

Older Persons Sub-Committee 17 November 2022 

 

BedsRCC’s Leighton Linslade Community Agent, Caroline Whitelegge, began 

work on 1 Sept 2022, thanks to funding from Leighton Linslade Town Council.  

Caroline can be contacted by telephone on: 07498 625526 

Her email address is: leightonagent@bedsrcc.org.uk 

Caroline is funded for 14 hours a week, which will typically be spread over three 

days each week (usually Mon-Weds).  She will be helping residents with issues 

such as: 

 accessing services and information which may be physically (through 
obtaining a Blue Badge enabling travel and parking closer to local 

services) or through gaining the knowledge to make choices and 
decisions. 

 obtaining benefits to which they are entitled such as Pension Credit, 
Working Tax Credit or Personal Independence Payments. 

 remaining in their own homes for longer, through Occupational Therapy 

assessments and provision of home help gadgets; or through local 
assistance from the Good Neighbour Scheme.  

 feeling safer and less isolated while living alone from a simple ‘Message in 
a Bottle’ alerting paramedics to key health info if the resident is found 
unconscious at home; to links to Bobby Van for stronger door and window 

security.  
 coping with the role of being a carer through links to Carers in Beds, 

Attendance Allowance and Carer’s Allowance applications, plus respite 
support to enable short breaks from caring responsibilities. 

 linking to local volunteers and organisations, from those that can help 

(such as the Good Neighbour Scheme, and specialist health support 
groups) through to those that can entertain (such as social clubs and 

activities). 
 participating in, and contributing to, community life, from becoming a 

volunteer and gaining the satisfaction of helping others; through to being 

able to take part in local events and opportunities. 
 

Progress so far: 
 
Within her first month Caroline has already supported three residents, two 

responding very quickly to the article about the Community Agent service in Bee 

Local magazine, and one she met at a local Walk for Health group.  

More followed in October, with Caroline supporting 10 new clients, 9 of whom 

learnt about her from Bee Local magazine, and 1 from LLTC’s social media.   

Issues have ranged from liaising with CBC to resolve a long-outstanding problem 

regarding maintenance of an overgrown boundary hedge bordering the garden 

Page 11

Agenda Item 7



of an older couple which was adversely affecting their wellbeing; to supporting a 

couple with safeguarding concerns.  

Caroline’s first telephone query in early September was from a lady seeking help 

for her elderly father who lived in a neighbouring town. Caroline linked them to 

the local good neighbour group there and reassured the daughter that she could 

call again for additional support should she need it. The carer was extremely 

grateful and said how wonderful it was to talk to someone friendly and helpful.  

During October, her support has included assisting clients with Blue Badge 

applications, referring clients to support and information about benefits, and 

identifying leisure and social activity groups.     

Feedback forms haven’t yet been available to send to clients, but some clients 

have given positive feedback via email:  

‘I met with the group you suggested this morning, really nice bunch of people, I 

actually know one of their members from another club, of which I’m a member. 

So I am probably going to join this group, it’s nice and cheap and I do really 

want to improve my skills.’ PF 

‘Thank you so much for all the advice and I will check on the website you 

recommended, much appreciated.’ HS 

 

Community Agent Plan for the next six months: 

The intention is to: 

- continue to promote the Community Agent service through both traditional and 

online mediums to reach not only those comfortable with IT but also those who 

for a range of reasons may be struggling to engage with their community and 

the support that is there for them.  

- identify suitable venues for holding one to one, face to face, appointments and 

community Drop-In sessions – such as the White House and the Chatty café. 

- work closely with partners/colleagues at Leighton-Linslade Town Council to 

make good use of events and facilities. 

- meet and establish more working relationships with local groups and 

organisations – to build knowledge of sources of support, and to set up referral 

links, so that Caroline can help their clients to obtain further support and so that 

her clients can access further support from them. 

 

More info on Community Agent outputs and outcomes so far is given in the 

accompanying tables.   

 

 

Page 12



Leighton Linslade Community Agent Outputs 

 

Sept Oct Total 

    

Total no. of residents supported: 3 10 13 

No. of residents provided with information/ 
signposted to other sources of support: 
 

3 5 8 

No. supported with more detailed needs than the 
provision of information/ signposting (thus 

becoming ‘clients’) 
 

 5 5 

    

Nature/no. of issues raised: 3 14 17 

Money matters  3 3 

Home Security/safety     

Home/garden maintenance   1 1 

Carer support 1 3 4 

Health 1 4 5 

Social activities 1 1 2 

Transport  2 2 

Other    

    

Total no. issues resolved: 3 6 9 

Total no. of issues still ongoing: 0 8 8 

    

Total no. client contacts made (visits, phone calls, 
emails, etc) 

3 21 24 

    

Total no. home visits made to clients    

Total no. one to one client meetings with clients 
at their other preferred venue – White House, 
Chatty café etc 

 1 1 

    

Total no. community groups visited  1 1 2 

These were:    

Walk for Health    

Chatty Cafe    

    

    

Total no. professional partnership connections 
initiated: 

 2 2 

These were with:    

Citizens  Advice    

Leighton-Linslade Health Connections    

    

    

 
 

   

Page 13



Leighton Linslade Community Agent 

Outcomes 

Sept Oct Total 

Total no. clients reporting feeling more supported 

and / or connected to the community (based on 
clients who send back a feedback form).  

n/a* n/a*  

Total no. clients reporting a greater sense of 
independence through info and resources to make  
choices and decisions   

n/a* n/a*  

Total no. of clients gaining financial value through 
additional benefits secured or savings made 

n/a* n/a*  

Total no. people referred to professional support 
agencies via Agent 

 2 2 

Total no. of people referred to Leighton-Linslade 
Helping Hands via Agent 

   

Total no. of people referred to other community 
organisations / activities via Agent 

3 1 4 

    

Leighton Linslade Community Agent  

Resident/Client Sources 

Sept Oct Total 

Bee local magazine 3 9 12 

About Town    

Posters/flyers    

Word of Mouth    

Local agency/organisation     

LLTC website    

BRCC website    

Social Media  1 1 

Other     

    

Leighton Linslade Community Agent  
Resident/Client Demographics 

Sept Oct Total 

Male 1 4 5 

Female 2 6 8 

    

Aged under 55    

56-75 2 5 7 

76-85 1 1 2 

Over 85  1 1 

Age not given  3 3 

    

    

    

 

*Client feedback forms weren’t available for Sept/Oct, but will be in use from 

November.  

 

 

Page 14



 
 
 
 
 

Older Persons Sub- Committee      
 

Date:  17th November 2022   

 

Title:  55UP Project  

 

Purpose of the Report:  
To provide an update on the proposal to launch a digital tablet device lending 
scheme.  

 

Contact Officer:  
Nina Bailey, Cultural and Economic Support Officer  
 

 

Corporate Objective/s To tackle loneliness and isolation in older residents 
through digital inclusion    

Implications:   

Financial No  

Human Resources No  

Operational/Service 
delivery 

Yes To manage the storing, 
distribution and overseeing of 
the tablet lending scheme   

Procedural/Legal No  

Risk/Health and Safety No  

Environmental Aims No  

 

1  RECOMMENDATION/S 
 

Should the Committee be minded, the proposals are: 
 

1.1 To note the report. 
 
1.2 To endorse the proposed procedure to establish a tablet lending scheme.  
 
1.2  To continue to ringfence the £15,000 allocated to the tablet lending scheme, 

to be used for other aspects of the 55UP programme  (see separate budget 
report).  

 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 15

Agenda Item 9



 
  
2  BACKGROUND 

 

2.1 Following the ‘Digital Exclusion Risk Report’ published by Citizens Online it was 
identified that approximately ‘7,700 adults may not own a laptop or PC and of 
these 1,650 may not have any device at all, including a smart phone’ Citizens 
Online (2022), Digital Exclusion Report. As part of the Town Council’s 55UP 
project, seeking to tackle loneliness and isolation within the older community, 
officers were recommended to research the options for establishing a tablet 
lending scheme.   

 
2.2  The overall budget for the 55UP project is £80,000 with £15,000 allocated 

towards a tablet lending scheme. 
 
2.3  Research was undertaken in summer 2022 regarding established tablet 

lending schemes and device/software providers. Initial information was shared 
with the Sub Committee at its meeting on 19 August 2022 and it was noted 
that there were some complex issues to consider further, including how best 
to manage devices and the data protection considerations if the Town Council 
was to establish its own tablet lending scheme.  

 
2.4 It was noted that the Bedfordshire Rural Communities Charity (BRCC) was 

already providing a device lending scheme in other parts of the county and 
agreed to explored possible collaboration between Leighton-Linslade Town 
Council (LLTC), BRCC and Citizens Online further.  

 

3  PROPOSALS 

 

3.1  Several discussions have taken place between all three parties to see how we 
can work collaboratively to maximise the success and impact of existing 
schemes and avoid duplication.   

 

3.2 Following discussions, it was agreed between all parties that it would be 
possible to collaborate and benefit from the existing BRCC “You can do IT” 
scheme, with referrals made through the existing digital champion network set 
up through Citizens Online.  This would allow residents of the parish to not only 
access digital skills support, but where needed to also access loan tablets and 
routers to complement this scheme. 

 

3.3  Procedural documents have now been finalised between Citizens Online, 
BRCC and the Town Council to encompass a tablet lending scheme into the 
digital support offering for Leighton-Linslade Parish.   

 
3.4  The proposed procedure is as follows: 
 

All device and router loans will be made through a referral by a Citizens 

Online Digital Champion (a volunteer who provides on the ground support to 

residents).  

 

Page 16



 
  

Digital Champions will have completed at least 2 face-to-face support 

sessions with an individual before referring them for a device or router loan.  

 
 

Once recipient has been identified, a Digital Champion will complete a short 

referral form which will be sent to Town Council Support Officer, including 

recipient’s name, address, contact details and reason for loan. Recipient will 

be made aware that loan will be from BRCC and they will need to sign a 

device loan agreement with the BRCC when receiving the device/router.  

 
 
When referral has been received by Support Officer, contact will be made with 

individual to arrange a time/place for delivery of device/router. If recipient is 

able, they will collect device/router from Town Council offices but if this is not 

possible then other arrangements can be put in place. 

 
 

At point of exchange, recipient will complete BRCC device loan agreement 

and will be given device/router. Town Council will take copy of agreement for 

records and will then forward agreement to BRCC.  

 
 

Loan duration will be for up to 6 months then review will take place in 

collaboration with BRCC, Town Council and Citizens Online. Support Officer 

will make contact with recipient 2 weeks prior to end of loan agreement to 

arrange either collection of device/router or to discuss extension.  

 
 
Once loan is complete, Support Officer will collect device/router. Town 

Council will store approx. 2 tablets and 2 routers at the Council offices and will 

contact BRCC if more is required.  

 
 
During loan period, if recipient is having any difficulties using their loaned 

device they will initially contact Citizens Online. If the issue is found to be with 

the device/router itself then recipient will be advised to contact Town Council 

Support Officer initially. Support Officer will then speak with BRCC to make 

decision either to reset device, replace device or terminate the contract with 

the recipient.  

 

4 TIMESCALES  
 
4.1   Following on from the procedure agreement, LLTC support officer will be 

collecting a set of devices and routers from the BRCC offices on Thursday 
10th November 2022. 

 

Page 17



 
  
 
4.2  A date will be arranged to introduce the tablet lending scheme and referral 

form to the Citizens Online Digital Champions. 
 
4.3  Efforts by both Citizens Online and the Town Council will then be made to 

identify residents in need of this scheme using established connections with 
local organisations including Leighton-Linslade Health Connections, Leighton 
Linslade Helping Hands and the Leighton-Linslade Community Agent. 

 
4.4  Estimated date for offering a tablet lending service to residents is December 

2022. 
 
 

5 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
5.1  £15,000 was allocated to the tablet lending scheme from the £80,000 

ringfenced for the 55UP project.  
 
5.2 Through working with BRCC to loan tablets and routers, the Town Council will 

be able to establish the device lending scheme with no additional costs.  
 
5.3  Therefore, it is suggested to Councillors that the £15,000 allocated to the 

scheme continues to be ringfenced for the 55UP project and used towards 
other aspects of the programme.  

 

6 CONCLUSION  
 
6.1 Citizens Online, BRCC and Town Council to collaborate to provide a 

tablet/router lending service to complement the current digital skills support 
service provided by Citizens Online.  

 
6.2  Following sign off of procedural documents, it is estimated that the tablet 

lending service will be in operation from December 2022.  
 
6.3  There will be no additional costs to establishing this tablet lending scheme.  
 
6.4  It is suggested to Councillors that the previously allocated funds of £15,000 for 

the tablet lending project remain ringfenced for the 55UP project and are used 
towards other aspects of the programme.  

 
  
End.  

Page 18



 
 
 
 
 

Older Persons Sub Committee      
 

Date:  17th November 2022    

 

Title:   55UP Project Budget Report  

 

Purpose of the Report:  
To provide updates on current budget for Older Persons Project   

 

Contact Officer:  
Nina Bailey, Cultural and Economic Support Officer  
 

 

Corporate Objective/s 55UP Project- seeking to tackle loneliness and 
isolation with older people in the community   

Implications:   

Financial Yes To consider the future budget 
of the programme   

Human Resources No  

Operational/Service 
delivery 

No  

Procedural/Legal No  

Risk/Health and Safety No  

Environmental Aims No  

 
 

1  RECOMMENDATION/S 
 

Should the Committee be minded, the proposals are: 
 

1.1 To approve suggestion to continue to ringfence £15,000 initially allocated to 
tablet lending scheme for 55UP project so unallocated budget is £18,604.40.   

 

1.2 To note future funding considerations for the 55UP project, including ending of 
current Citizens Online contract and further potential projects to support 
changes to adult day care provision and tackling isolation in older men.   

 
 
 
 
 

Page 19

Agenda Item 10



 
  
2  BACKGROUND  

 

2.1 The Older Persons Project was allocated £80,000 from the 2021-2026 
Leighton- Linslade Town Council 5 Year Financial Plan.  This was based on 
some initial scoping work for a range of projects and for delivery over two 
financial years.  

 
2.2  The funding for the Older Persons Project was split between areas of focus: 

Digital Inclusion (creating digital skills support and a tablet lending scheme), 
Creation of a Directory (online and print for older people), Visual Identity 
(creating the 55UP brand) and Direct Support for Local Groups (two rounds of 
grant applications).  

 
2.3  Several aspects of the Older Persons Project came in under budget, including 

hosting costs for the Leighton-Linslade Helping Hands website, the tablet 
lending scheme, design of the 55UP Town Council website page and 55UP 
visual branding.   

 
2.4  The decision was taken not to pursue the interactive online directory due to 

concerns with staff hours to create/upkeep, so focus was put onto updating 
existing directories and the continued publication of the “Yellow Booklet” 
(information booklet for older people). Therefore, the £10,700 allocated 
became available for other aspects of the 55UP programme.  

 
2.5 The two rounds of grant schemes that took place between 2021-2022 were 

very successful and oversubscribed, with an overspend of £1,014,59. This 
expenditure was able to be absorbed through unallocated funds within the 
budget.  

 
2.5  In July 2022, there was £11,780.40 of unallocated funding. The decision was 

taken by the Older Persons Subcommittee to use £8,176 of this fund to 
finance the Town Council’s Community Agent project from September 2022-
March 2023, also part of the 55UP programme (funding for the remainder of 
this pilot scheme was allocated through a specific earmarked reserve).  

 
2.6 From August 2022, this left £3,604.40 of unallocated funds within the Older 

Persons budget, plus £15,000 allocated to a possible digital tablet loan 
scheme.  
 

Page 20



 
  
3  PROPOSAL  

 

3.1  As outlined in a separate report, a tablet lending scheme is currently being 
finalised between Citizens Online (charity organisation providing the Town 
Council’s Digital Skills Programme) and Bedfordshire Rural Communities 
Charity (BRCC) You can do IT scheme. The charity has funding to provide 
tablets and routers for residents across Bedfordshire without access to the 
internet. Through working with the BRCC, the tablet lending scheme will incur 
no additional costs to the Town Council.   

 
3.2  It is suggested to Councillors that the £15,000 allocated to the tablet lending 

scheme is moved into the unallocated budget and is used towards other 
aspects of the 55UP programme.  

 
3.3  This would mean that there would be £18,604.40 of unallocated funds within 

the Older Persons budget. This is currently part of an earmarked reserve 
(9507/925) for “Projects – older/young persons”.  

 

4   FUTURE CONSIDERATIONS   
 
4.1 The Sub-Committee may wish to consider possible projects beyond the scope 

of what has already been agreed, including:  
  

- Potential to continue the digital support helpline once the initial two-year 
contract with Citizens Online terminates on 31st October 2023 

- Exploring any potential to support/complement the planned changes to 
Adult Day Care Support within Leighton-Linslade Parish with the closure of 
Duncombe Drive Day Centre and the opening of Marigold House  

- Potential further projects to help to tackle loneliness and isolation in older 
men, eg. A ‘Men in Sheds’ project  

 
4.2 In addition to the continued ringfencing of the allocated earmarked reserve 

funding, the Sub-Committee may wish to consider making recommendations 
to the Cultural & Economic Services Committee in its review of revenue 
budget arrangements for 2023-24.  

 
 
End.  

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22



Older Persons Sub Committee Meeting 17.11.22   Current Budget Overview for 55UP project  

 

Older Persons Expenditure 2021-2022

Budget code:  925/9507

Total allocated budget: £80,000

Area of focus Allocated Buget Spend so far Remaining Budget

Current Unallocated Funds 

(within remaining budget) Total Spend so far: £47,207.60

Digital Inclusion £54,550 £34,693.01 £15,357  £                                         344.99 Total Remaining Budget: 26,792.40£ 

Directory £15,200 £1,500 £12,200 £12,200

Visual Identity £250 £0 £250 £250

Total Unallocated Funds (within 

remaining budget): 11,780.40£ 

Direct Support of Local Groups £10,000 £11,014.59 -£1,014.59 -£1,014.59

Unallocated funds with subtraction 

of community agent 3,604.40£    

 Total: £80,000 £47,207.60 26,792.40£                            11,780.40£                                   

£8,176

Community 

Agent 

3,604.40£                                     

Now 

unallocated 

funds

Community Agent Funding from 

September '22- March '23- taken 

from unallocated funds  £8,176

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 24


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
	6 TECHNICAL SUPPORT HELPLINE
	7 COMMUNITY AGENT SCHEME LAUNCH
	9 TABLET LOAN UPDATE
	10 BUDGET REPORT
	55UP Budget Overview Sheet for Budget Report


